A Guide to Transferring Florida's ProblemSolving Court Cases

September 2016

WHAT, WHO, WHEN, AND WHY?

- **WHAT** is *A Guide to Transferring Florida's Problem-Solving Court Cases*? The purpose of this transfer guide is to assist problem-solving courts with transferring cases between jurisdictions effectively and efficiently.
- WHO should use *A Guide to Transferring Florida's Problem-Solving Court Cases?* Judges, magistrates, court staff, and attorneys will find the information in the transfer guide helpful.
- **WHEN** should *A Guide to Transferring Florida's Problem-Solving Court Cases* be used? Now! Florida's problem-solving courts admit thousands of clients every year, several hundred of which are transferred from one jurisdiction to another.
- WHY use A Guide to Transferring Florida's Problem-Solving Court Cases? It will assist judges, magistrates, court staff, and attorneys to meet the challenges of responding to the needs of clients with substance use and/or mental health disorders.

Florida currently has 94 drug courts, 24 veterans courts, and 28 mental health courts.

A Guide to Transferring Florida's Problem-Solving Court Cases includes information on adult drug courts and veterans courts. The Office of the State Courts Administrator (OSCA) is looking to further expand this guide to other problem solving courts due to recent legislative changes.

The information provided in this document was provided by the local problemsolving courts and edited by the OSCA.

BACKGROUND

In 2001, section 910.035(5), Florida Statutes (*the transfer statute*) was created stating "any person eligible for participation in a drug court treatment program pursuant to s. 948.08(6) may be eligible to have the case transferred to a county other than that in which the charge arose if the drug court program agrees" and if certain conditions are met. Around the same time, the Florida Association of Drug Court Professionals (FADCP) developed recommended procedures, (included in this guide) to assist drug court staff with the transfer process.

In 2002, in an effort to improve the transfer process, the Supreme Court's Task Force on Treatment-Based Drug Courts recommended modifying some of the conditions in which a drug court case can be transferred. In 2006, the transfer statute was modified by the Florida Legislature to include the Task Force's recommendations.

In 2015, the Florida Legislature expanded the transfer statute to include other types of drug courts such as post-adjudicatory drug courts and pretrial misdemeanor drug courts, as well as other problem-solving courts, specifically, veterans courts and mental health courts. In 2016, the Florida Legislature further expanded the transfer statute to include delinquency pretrial intervention programs.

The Office of the State Courts Administrator recommends problem-solving courts requesting to transfer a client's case ensure the client meets all requirements of the receiving jurisdiction and ensure the Department of Corrections has completed the intake and investigation before requesting a transfer, if applicable.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| PROBLEM-SOLVING COURT TRANSFER STATUTE | VII |
|---|------|
| PROCEDURES FOR TRANSFERRING PROBLEM-SOLVING COURT CASES | VIII |
| SAMPLE AGREED ORDER OF TRANSFER | IX |
| SAMPLE COURT ORDER RATIFYING AGREEMENTS TO TRANSFER | X |
| SAMPLE ACCEPTANCE LETTER | XII |
| FIRST JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Escambia County | 1 |
| Okaloosa County | 3 |
| SECOND JUDICIÁL CIRCUIT | |
| Gadsden County | 5 |
| Leon County | 6 |
| FOURTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Clay County | 9 |
| Duval County | |
| FIFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Citrus County | 13 |
| Hernando County | 14 |
| Marion County | 15 |
| SIXTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Pasco County | 19 |
| Pinellas County | |
| SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Flagler County | 28 |
| Putnam County | 30 |
| St. Johns County | 32 |
| Volusia County | |
| EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Alachua County | 38 |
| NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Orange County | |
| Osceola County | |
| TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Polk County | |
| ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Miami-Dade County | |
| TWELFTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Manatee County | |
| Sarasota County | 57 |
| THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Hillsborough County | 59 |

| FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
|------------------------------|----|
| Bay County | 64 |
| Jackson County | 65 |
| FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Palm Beach County | |
| SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Monroe County | 69 |
| SEVENTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Broward County | |
| EIGHTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Brevard County | |
| Seminole County | |
| NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Indian River County | 81 |
| Martin County | |
| Okeechobee County | 89 |
| St. Lucie County | 91 |
| TWENTIETH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT | |
| Charlotte County | |
| Collier County | |
| Lee County | |

PROBLEM-SOLVING COURT TRANSFER STATUTE

Section 910.035, F.S. Transfer from county for plea, sentence, or participation in a problem-solving court.

(5) TRANSFER FOR PARTICIPATION IN A PROBLEM-SOLVING COURT.

- (a) For purposes of this subsection, the term "problem-solving court" means a drug court pursuant to s. <u>948.01</u>, s. <u>948.06</u>, s. <u>948.08</u>, s. <u>948.16</u>, or s. <u>948.20</u>; a military veterans' and servicemembers' court pursuant to s. <u>394.47891</u>, s. <u>948.08</u>, s. <u>948.16</u>, or s. <u>948.21</u>; a mental health court program pursuant to s. <u>394.47892</u>, s. <u>948.01</u>, s. <u>948.06</u>, s. <u>948.08</u>, or s. <u>948.16</u>; or a delinquency pretrial intervention court program pursuant to s. <u>985.345</u>.
- (b) Any person eligible for participation in a problem-solving court shall, upon request by the person or a court, have the case transferred to a county other than that in which the charge arose if the person agrees to the transfer, the authorized representative of the trial court consults with the authorized representative of the problem-solving court in the county to which transfer is desired, and both representatives agree to the transfer.
- (c) If all parties agree to the transfer as required by paragraph (b), the trial court shall enter a transfer order directing the clerk to transfer the case to the county which has accepted the defendant into its problem-solving court.
- (d) 1. When transferring a pretrial problem-solving court case, the transfer order shall include a copy of the probable cause affidavit; any charging documents in the case; all reports, witness statements, test results, evidence lists, and other documents in the case; the defendant's mailing address and telephone number; and the defendant's written consent to abide by the rules and procedures of the receiving county's problem-solving court.
- 2. When transferring a post adjudicatory problem-solving court case, the transfer order shall include a copy of the charging documents in the case; the final disposition; all reports, test results, and other documents in the case; the defendant's mailing address and telephone number; and the defendant's written consent to abide by the rules and procedures of the receiving county's problem-solving court.
- (e) After the transfer takes place, the receiving clerk shall set the matter for a hearing before the problem-solving court in the receiving jurisdiction to ensure the defendant's entry into the problem-solving court.
- (f) Upon successful completion of the problem-solving court program, the jurisdiction to which the case has been transferred shall dispose of the case. If the defendant does not complete the problem-solving court program successfully, the jurisdiction to which the case has been transferred shall dispose of the case within the guidelines of the Criminal Punishment Code.

RECOMMENDED PROCEDURE FOR TRANSFERRING PROBLEM-SOLVING COURT CASES

- Upon learning of a desired transfer, the coordinator from the sending jurisdiction will consult with the coordinator in the receiving jurisdiction to notify them about the proposed transfer. A background investigation or criminal history will then be forwarded to the receiving county.
- If the approval for transfer is received from all parties, the coordinator from the sending jurisdiction will prepare an Agreed Order to Transfer and a Court Order Ratifying Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition Pursuant to Section 910.035, F.S. to be signed by the Judge in the transferring/sending jurisdiction (see sample orders included).
- The coordinator in the sending jurisdiction will notify the clerk contact in the sending jurisdiction, to provide them with the original Agreed Order to Transfer and Court Order Ratifying Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition Pursuant to Section 910.035, F.S.
- The coordinator in the sending jurisdiction will send a copy of the Agreed Order to Transfer and Court Order Ratifying Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition Pursuant to Section 910.035, F.S. to the coordinator of the receiving county.
- The defendant will call the coordinator in the receiving jurisdiction upon arrival. The coordinator will be responsible for tracking the case, i.e., ensuring that the defendant has the correct contact information for the treatment provider and if applicable, the Department of Corrections. The coordinator will also notify the treatment provider and, if applicable, the Department of Corrections of the transfer.
- The coordinator or the clerk's office will supply copies of the Agreed Order to Transfer and Court Order Ratifying Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition Pursuant to Section 910.035, F.S. to the assistant state attorney, defense counsel, Department of Corrections, treatment, and the defendant.
- The clerk's office in the sending jurisdiction will send certified copies of all documents in the court file to the clerk's office of the receiving county (see note below).

Note: Section 910.035(5) (d)1., F.S. requires that: When transferring a pretrial problem-solving court case, the transfer order shall include a copy of the probable cause affidavit; any charging documents in the

case; all reports, witness statements, test results, evidence lists, and other documents in the case; the defendant's mailing address and telephone number; and the defendant's written consent to abide by the rules and procedures of the receiving county's problem-solving court.

Section 910.035(5) (d) 2. requires that:

When transferring a post adjudicatory problem-solving court case, the transfer order shall include a copy of the charging documents in the case; the final disposition; all reports, test results, and other documents in the case; the defendant's mailing address and telephone number; and the defendant's written consent to abide by the rules and procedures of the receiving county's problem-solving court.

- The clerk's office or the coordinator (pursuant to the county/circuit policy) of the receiving jurisdiction is responsible for setting the case on the docket for a hearing before the judge once the transfer has taken place.
- The coordinator in the receiving jurisdiction is responsible for ensuring that the case receives a first hearing date.
- Once the case appears on the docket of the receiving jurisdiction, the coordinator in the receiving jurisdiction will notify the coordinator in the sending jurisdiction that the transfer has been completed. Notification of acceptance will be in the form of a Transfer Acceptance Letter (see sample letter included).

SAMPLE AGREED ORDER OF TRANSFER

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE XXXXXXXX JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR XXXXXXX COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA CRIMINAL DIVISION

| STATE OF FLORIDA | CASE NO.: |
|--|--|
| V. | |
| AGREED ORDE | R OF TRANSFER |
| The defendant,requests that the careflorida, pursuant to section 910.035(5), F.S. and the receiving county's drug court program. | • |
| Defendant's Signature | |
| Defendant's Mailing Address: | _ |
| Defendant's Phone Number | |
| of the probable cause affidavit, charging case. The State Attorney for XXXXXXX | r XXXXXX County is directed to include a copy documents, and any other pleadings filed in this County shall provide the State Attorney for the tness statements, test results, evidence lists, and |
| DONE AND ORDERED, 20, in XXXX | _ • |
| , Circui | it Judge |
| Copies furnished: Assistant State Attorney Defense Counsel Drug Court Coordinator Department of Corrections Defendant | |

SAMPLE COURT ORDER RATIFYING AGREEMENT TO TRANSFER

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE XXXXXXXX JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA IN AND FOR XXXXXXXXXXXX COUNTY CRIMINAL DIVISION

| STATE OF FLORIDA | CASE NO.: |
|--|--|
| V. | DIVISION: |
| TRANSFER JURISDICT | RATIFYING AGREEMENT TO ION AND VENUE FOR DISPOSITION O SECTION 910.035(5), F.S. |
| | , requests that the charges, originating in the aforementioned circuit, be county, Florida, pursuant to section 910.035 (5), F.S. and |
| subject to the terms of this agreement. | |
| pursuant to Florida Statute 948.08 (6) and county other than that in which the charg | that he/she is a qualified client in a drug court program d may be eligible to have the case transferred to a see arose, provided that the defendant agrees to and res of both the originating and receiving jurisdictions t. |
| | s that to be eligible to transfer this case to a county other ering a plea of nolo contendre to the charges of Defendant agrees to comply with all requirements |
| to sentencing in the receiving jurisdiction program. Upon successful completion of permitted to withdraw the previously ente drop the charges on behalf of the originat | rees to waive his/her right to trial and to proceed directly a upon failure to successfully complete the drug court of the drug court program, the defendant will be ered plea of nolo contendre and the State Attorney will ting jurisdiction. The clerk of the receiving jurisdiction drisdiction that the charges were dismissed. |
| the defendant demonstrating that defenda | ducted by the court and a written plea form executed by ant has entered a plea of nolo contendre to the above tarily, and intelligently, which is attached to and ment. |
| Defendant understands and acknotimposed by each participating jurisdiction | owledges that he/she is responsible for court costs n and all treatment fees, if applicable. |

| Defendant's Signature | | | |
|--|--|--|----------------------------------|
| Defendant's Phone Number | | Defendant's Mail | Address |
| The Clerk of the Circuit Contransfer jurisdiction and venue and to include a copy of the probable pleadings filed in the case. The Suprovide the State Attorney for the testing results, evidence lists, and | of the case for cable cause affid State Attorney for receiving juris | disposition toavit, charging documents ordiction with all report | ents, and any other County shall |
| | | | 20 |

Copies furnished to: Assistant State Attorney Defense Counsel Drug Court Coordinator Department of Corrections Defendant

SAMPLE ACCEPTANCE LETTER

| (Date) | | |
|------------------------------|---|---|
| Reference: | (Name) (Race / Sex) (Date of Birth) | Case Number: (in sending county) |
| | TF | RANSFER ACCEPTANCE |
| Venue on the in this case ha | case of | Drug Court agrees to accept Transfer of Jurisdiction and from (Circuit / County). The defendant accepting the terms of the Drug Court and has |
| The defendant | | he transferred charge (s) in County is: |
| The defendant scheduled for | are appearance in | County on the transferred charge (s) is |
| If you have an | y questions feel free to | o contact me at |
| (Signature) | | |
| Drug Court Co | oordinator | |

Escambia County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Cathy White (850) 595-3055 cathy.white@flcourts1.gov

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must reside in Escambia or Santa Rosa Counties.
- Must have drug/alcohol addiction.
- Eligible charges include purchase, possession, or manufacturing of a controlled substance; prescription forgery; introduction of contraband into jail; thefts; forgeries; uttering forgeries; worthless checks; burglaries; and dealing in stolen property.
- Ineligible charges include any violent crime and DUI.
- Violations of probation are accepted.

- Must enter a plea of no contest or guilty.
- Must attend AA/NA/CA or other community based program a minimum of twice weekly.
- Must attend weekly court reviews in Phase 1, bi-weekly in Phase 2, every 3 weeks in Phase 3, and every 8 weeks in aftercare.
- Must submit to random, observed urinalysis and/or breathalyzer testing.
- Must work or be enrolled in school at least 20 hours per week or perform 20 hours of community service work and 10 job searches per week.

Escambia County

Veterans Court (Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Damarcus Smith (850) 595-4388 Damarcus.smith@flcourts1.gov

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran.
- Must have a treatable behavioral, mental, or chemical health problem as a result of trauma experienced while serving in a combat/war zone.

- Must enter a plea of nolo contendere or guilty.
- Must participate in an employment/educational/vocational program.
- Must comply with the treatment case plan.

Okaloosa County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Cathy White (850) 595-3055 cathy.white@flcourts1.gov

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must have a drug/alcohol addiction.
- Must have an open felony case.
- Ineligible charge(s) include any violent crime, weapons, or sexual misconduct.
- Violations of probation are accepted.

- Must be placed on community control or probation.
- Must work a minimum of 32 hours per week or perform 32 hours of community service work.
- If unemployed, must actively perform job searches.
- Must attend AA/NA/CA or other community-based program 4 times weekly at a minimum.

Okaloosa County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers Edwin Rivera (850) 609-5186 edwin.rivera@flcourts1.gov

Clerk of Court Contact

Stephanie Godfrey (850) 651-7200 x 4332

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran.
- Must have a treatable behavioral, mental, or chemical health problem as a result of trauma experienced while serving in a combat/war zone.

Program Requirements

- Must be placed on a period of probation.
- Must attend AA/NA/CA or other community based support program.
- Must perform community service work.
- Must obtain employment or be enrolled in school.
- Must submit to random/observed drug and alcohol testing.
- Must attend court twice monthly.
- Must attend treatment as required.
- Must maintain contact with mentor, if assigned.

- Must meet veterans court criteria (military background, acceptable type of charges, criminal history, sentencing score, etc.).
- Must obtain an order transferring jurisdiction.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.

SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Gadsden County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre-Plea})

Drug Court Coordinator

Annie Britt-Berry (850) 627-0251 aberry6376@aol.com

Designee for Handling Transfers

Nina Moody 850-627-9421 moodyn@leoncountyfl.gov

Clerk of Court Contact

Kathy Young (850) 875-8612

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Gadsden County.
- Must have a substance use disorder.
- Must be a first time felony.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to random urinalysis and drug testing.
- Must attend monthly court appearances.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Transfer paperwork must be approved by the drug court coordinator and contain a court date.

SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Leon County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre-Plea})

Drug Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers

Jody Jacobsen (850 606-4404 or (850) 875-8042 jodya@leoncountyfl.gov

Clerk of Court Contact

Jerra Chitwood (850) 577-4197 Shannon Cash Russell (850) 577-4134

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Criminal history may not include a felony drug charge (i.e. no selling or trafficking).

- Must not take any mood altering (narcotics or alcohol) drugs for the duration of program.
- Must have a probation officer assigned and meet with the probation officer once per month.
- Must attend 12-Step or alternative meeting one time per week during the last six months.
- Must obtain employment or be enrolled in school.
- Must submit to oral or urine drug testing (phase one and two required a minimum two times per week, phase three a minimum of one time per week (random line must be called Monday through Friday).
- Must attend substance use group counseling (phase one once per week), relapse prevention (phase two twice per month), and a minimum of 6 one-on-one counseling sessions.
- Must attend all court appearances as follows: phase one and two, minimum one time per month; phase three, once every three months.

- Must transfer venue.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must enter a plea for circuit-to-circuit transfers but not for within circuit transfers.
- A motion to transfer must be filed with supporting documents.

SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Leon County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre-Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers Brenda Mueller (850) 606-4450 muellerb@leoncountyfl.gov

Clerk of Court Contact

Jerra Chitwood (850) 577-4197 Shannon Cash Russell (850) 577-4134

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must have a documented military-related mental health diagnosis including, but not limited to, post-traumatic stress disorder, traumatic brain injury, a substance use disorder, or mental health disorder.
- Must participate in assessments and meetings.
- Must voluntarily agree to be a part of, and comply with, the program.
- Must be approved for enrollment in the program.

Program Requirements

- Must attend individual and/or group counseling.
- Must submit to drug/alcohol testing.
- Must complete community service hours.
- Must attend all court appearances.
- Must comply with treatment plan.
- Must submit to monitoring by pre-trial, county, or Department of Corrections supervision.
- Must pay all fees/restitution.
- Must complete all 4 Phases of program successfully to graduate (includes mandatory number of sobriety days)

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue on a case by case basis.
- Must be approved by veterans court team prior to the transfer.
- Must submit to monitoring by pre-trial, county, or Department of Corrections supervision.

Clay County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Teri Hamlyn
(904) 255-1046
thamlyn@coj.net

Clerk of Court Contact

Sandy Prather (904) 269-6302 x 2321

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Clay County.
- Eligible charges include non-violent 2nd or 3rd degree felonies.
- Must not have a current or prior history of violent crimes or sex crimes.
- Must be screened for placement in intensive outpatient treatment services at a minimum, for a substance use and/or mental health disorders.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.

Program Requirements

- Must attend ongoing substance use and/or mental health treatment for a minimum of 12 months and complete all 5 phases of the program.
- Must submit to all required examinations or assessments to determine appropriate treatment placement and services.
- Must submit to random observed drug testing at least 2 times per week.
- Must attend sobriety support meetings/activities, participate in services with a court case manager, be supervised by a probation officer, attend court frequently, and follow all rules and regulations of the program.
- Must obtain employment or be enrolled in school.
- Must complete GED prior to program completion, if applicable.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must enter a plea if transferring from outside of the 4th circuit.
- Must receive prior approval to transfer from the 4th circuit.

Clay County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers Teri Hamlyn (904) 255-1046 thamlyn@coj.net

Clerk of Court Contact

Zoila Frazier (904) 269-6302 x 2321

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran, active-duty service member or reservist in good standing.
- Eligible charges include non-violent misdemeanors or non-violent 2nd or 3rd degree felonies.
- Must be a resident of Clay County.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must not have a current or prior history of violent crimes or sex crimes.
- Must be diagnosed with a service-related substance use and/or mental health disorder including but not limited to, post-traumatic stress disorder, traumatic brain injury or major depressive disorder.

Program Requirements

- Must attend ongoing substance use and/or mental health treatment for a minimum of 12 months and complete all 5 phases of the program.
- Must submit to all required examinations or assessments to determine appropriate treatment placement and services.
- Must submit to random observed drug testing at least 2 times per week.
- Must attend sobriety support meetings/activities, participate in services with a volunteer veteran mentor, participate in services with a court case manager, attend court frequently, and follow all rules and regulations of the program.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must enter a plea.

Duval County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Teri Hamlyn
(904) 255-1046
thamlyn@coj.net

Clerk of Court Contact

Thomas McCallister (904) 255-2070

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Duval County.
- Eligible charges include non-violent 2nd or 3rd degree felonies.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must not have a current or prior history of violent crimes or sex crimes.
- Must be screened for placement in intensive outpatient treatment for substance use or co-occurring disorders.

Program Requirements

- Must attend ongoing substance use/co-occurring disorder treatment for a minimum of 12 months and complete each all 5 phases of program.
- Must submit to all required examinations or assessments to determine appropriate treatment placement and services.
- Must submit to random observed drug testing at least 2 times per week.
- Must attend sobriety support meetings/activities, participate in services with a court case manager, be supervised by a probation officer, attend court frequently, and follow all rules and regulations of program.
- Must obtain employment or be active in school.
- Must complete GED prior to program completion, if applicable.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must enter a plea if transferring from outside of the 4^{th} circuit.
- Must receive prior approval to transfer from the 4th circuit.

Duval County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Teri Hamlyn
(904) 255-1046
thamlyn@coj.net

Clerk of Court Contact

Thomas McCallister (904) 255-2070

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran, active-duty service member or reservist in good standing.
- Eligible charges include non-violent misdemeanors or 2nd or 3rd degree felonies.
- Must be a resident of Duval County.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must not have a current or prior history of violent crimes or sex crimes
- Must be diagnosed with a service-related substance use and/or mental health disorder including but not limited to, post-traumatic stress, traumatic brain injury or major depressive disorder.
- Must be eligible to receive veteran's healthcare services.

Program Requirements

- Must attend ongoing substance use and/or mental health treatment for a minimum of 12 months and complete all 5 phases of the program.
- Must submit to all required examinations or assessments to determine appropriate treatment placement and services.
- Must submit to random observed drug testing at least 2 times per week.
- Must attend sobriety support meetings/activities, participate in services with a volunteer veteran mentor, participate in services with a court case manager, attend court frequently, and follow all rules and regulations of the program.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must enter a plea if transferring from outside of the 4th circuit.
- Must receive prior approval to transfer from the 4th circuit.

Citrus County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Samantha Shepard
(352) 341-6721
samantha.shephard@bocc.citrus.fl.us

Clerk of Court Contact

Angela Vick (352) 341-6400

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Citrus County.
- Must have a history of substance use.
- Criminal history may not include violent or sexually based charges.

Program Requirements

- Must enter a plea of no contest or guilty within 4 weeks of starting the program.
- Must attend 12-Step meetings, group sessions and submit to drug screens as required throughout the program based on program level.
- Must attend court weekly during Level I, bi-weekly during Level II, monthly during Level III, then once every 6 weeks during Level IV.
- Community service is only required if the individual is not working and/or enrolled in school.

- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Eligible charges include felony drug charges, violations of probation with a positive screen, and burglary charges if the underlying reason was to obtain money for drugs.
- Must not have current or past violent crimes, sexual offenses, or any sales or manufacturing charges.

Hernando County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Peggy Welch (352) 754-4402 pwelch@circuit5.org

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Hernando County.
- Must have a substance use history.
- Qualifying charges include any charge with a drug nexus.
- Violations of probation are eligible.

- Must enter a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- Must be placed on probation for the duration of the program.
- Must submit to random urine drug screens three times a week during Phase I. The number of screens per week decreases as each phase is completed. Clients are required to call in daily for screens in all phases.
- Must attend court appearances once per week in Phase I, every two weeks in Phase II, and once per month in Phases III and IV.
- Must attend 3 peer support groups per week (NA, AA).

Marion County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication})

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Dora Reep
(352) 401-6729
dreep@circuit5.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Jody Mullen (352) 671-5674

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Marion County.
- Must be a first time offender or previously adjudicated of one nonviolent misdemeanor.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree, prostitution, 2nd degree felonies involving purchase or possession of a controlled substance, solicitation for purchase of a controlled substance, or obtaining a prescription by fraud.

Program Requirements

- Must enter a plea.
- Must attend peer support meetings.
- Must submit to drug testing.
- Must attend monthly court appearances.
- Must attend weekly treatment sessions and pay a \$50.00 weekly fee.
- Must attend all case management meetings.

- Must transfer venue and jurisdiction.
- Must complete a transfer application.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must enter a plea in receiving jurisdiction.

Marion County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Alina Stoothoff
(352) 401-6725
astoothoff@circuit5.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Jody Mullen (352) 671-5674

Program Eligibility

- Must be a resident of Marion County.
- Must be prison bound.
- Sentencing score must be greater than 22 and less than 60.
- Must have an eligible pending felony charge(s) to include violation of probation or community control.
- Must not have any disqualifying prior adjudications for violent offenses or drug sales.
- Substance use screening must indicate that substance use treatment is therapeutically appropriate.
- Must be amenable to participating and agree to enter and successfully complete drug court as a condition of probation or community control.

Program Requirements

- Must enter a guilty plea.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must participate in peer support meetings (AA etc.).
- Must attend all scheduled court appearances.
- Must be employed, attempting to obtain employment, or enroll in school.
- Must submit to random drug screens.

- Must transfer venue and jurisdiction.
- Must complete a transfer application.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must enter a plea in receiving jurisdiction.

Marion County

Adult Misdemeanor Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea})

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Thomas Aemisegger
(352) 401-6706
taemisegger@circuit5.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Jill Hutst (352) 671-5597 Sarah Driggers (352) 671-5543

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Marion County, or reside in a county where a
 misdemeanor drug court is available. If the defendant resides in any other
 county, the case will be considered on a case by case basis.
- Eligible charges include misdemeanors for controlled substance or drug paraphernalia; prostitution; possession of alcohol while under 21 years of age; and possession of a controlled substance without a valid prescription. Other allowable misdemeanors may be considered for participation in this program.
- Must not have a prior felony adjudication.

Program Requirements

- Must sign participation agreement and waive the right to a speedy trial.
- Must attend regular court appearances and scheduled treatment sessions; submit
 to random drug screens; attend recovery or peer support groups; attend
 orientation and any case management appointment scheduled; maintain a
 journal; maintain employment or attend an educational program; submit paper
 outlining what was learned from the program and a relapse prevention plan.

- Must transfer venue and jurisdiction.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.

Marion County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers Regina Lewis (352) 401-6728 rlewis@circuit5.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Staci Winston (352) 671-5602

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must be represented by an attorney.
- Violations of probation are accepted.
- Eligible charges include misdemeanors (except certain DUI charges) and felonies (except charges set forth in section 948.06(8)(c), Florida Statutes and DUI charges).

Program Requirements

- Must meet regularly with a probation officer.
- Must attend weekly court reviews during Phase 1 to report on progress in treatment to the judge.
- Must attend court once every 2 to 3 weeks or as directed by the judge in Phase 2.
- Must attend court monthly in Phase 3.
- Must comply with the treatment plan.

- Must transfer venue and jurisdiction.
- Must submit a transfer application.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.

Pasco County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Stephanie Lombardi
(727) 847-2411 x 8489
slombard@jud6.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Paula S. O'Neil (727) 847-2411

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges include drug possession (excluding trafficking amounts); purchase of drugs; small sales of drugs where the facts indicate the seller is supporting a drug habit; property crimes or other nonviolent offenses where the victim agrees, and other 3rd degree felonies where the facts indicate the offense was drug related or influenced.
- Violations of probation are eligible on the above crimes where all the crimes before the court would individually qualify.

Program Requirements

- Must abide by all rules and regulations of program.
- Must not use alcohol or mind altering drugs.
- Must attend all court status reviews.
- Must comply with curfew.
- Must attend two Sober Support meetings per week.
- Must maintain employment, continue education or obtain a GED. If not full time employed or enrolled in school, client must complete 8 hours of community service per week.
- Must obtain a driver's license.
- Must submit to random drug testing once per week.
- During Phase I clients are required to attend court status hearings bi-weekly or at the judge's discretion.
- During the aftercare phase clients are required to attend court status hearings monthly or at the judge's discretion.

Transfer Requirements

Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.

- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must obtain an Agreed Order to Transfer and a Court Order Ratifying Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.

Pasco County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers Stephanie Lombardi (727) 847-2411 x 8489 slombard@jud6.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Paula S. O'Neil (727) 847-2411

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges must stem from physical injuries or mental health disorders resulting from military service and be misdemeanor(s) or 3rd degree felonies.
- Must not have previously participated in veterans treatment court, unless this criterion is specifically waived by the state attorney and the client's mental health/substance use assessment indicates that he/she is amenable to mental health and/or substance use treatment.

- Must not use alcohol or mind altering drugs.
- Must attend all court status reviews.
- Must comply with curfew.
- Must attend two Sober Support meetings per week.
- Must maintain employment, continue education or obtain a GED. If not employed full time or enrolled in school, client must complete 8 hours of community service per week.
- Must obtain a driver's license.
- Must submit to random drug testing once per week.
- During Phase I clients are required to attend court status hearings bi-weekly or at the judge's discretion.
- During the aftercare phase clients are required to attend court status hearings monthly or at the judge's discretion.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must obtain an Agreed Order to Transfer and a Court Order Ratifying Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.

Pinellas County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers/
Clerk of Court Contact
Nick Bridenback
(727) 453-7063
nbridenback@jud6.org

Transfer Requirements

- This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.
- There is a transfer process between Pasco and Pinellas Counties that must be approved by the state attorney.

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must not have prior violent felonies.
- Eligible charges include drug possession or purchase under chapter 893, Florida Statutes.
- Property crimes (with victim's approval) and other 3rd degree drug related felonies may be accepted.
- Ineligible charges include drug sales or trafficking.

- Must not use alcohol or mind altering substances.
- Must attend all court hearings as scheduled and/or attend court at least once per month.
- Must submit to weekly random urinalysis.
- Must attend Sober Support meetings weekly.
- Must maintain employment, continue education, or obtain a GED.
- Must obtain a driver's license, if necessary.
- Must complete the conditions of supervision that includes satisfying court costs.

Pinellas County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers/
Clerk of Court Contact
Nick Bridenback
(727) 453-7063
nbridenback@jud6.org

Transfer Requirements

- This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.
- There is a transfer process between Pasco and Pinellas Counties that must be approved by the state attorney.

Program Eligibility

• Must be 18 years of age or older.

For open charges:

- Eligible charges include 3rd degree felonies, including 3rd degree burglary and 2nd degree purchase of a controlled substance.
- Must not have any current or previous adjudications of a forcible felony as defined in section 776.08, Florida Statutes.
- Criminal Punishment Code Scoresheet total must not be less than 44.1 points and not more than 60 points. The offender otherwise qualifies under section 397.334(3), Florida Statutes.

Violation of Probation or Community Control:

- The underlying offense may be a 3rd degree felony, including 3rd degree burglary and 2nd degree purchase of a controlled substance.
- Must not have any current or previous adjudications of a forcible felony as defined in section 776.08, Florida Statutes.
- Criminal Punishment Code Scoresheet total must not be more than 60 points. After the points for the violation are included, a departure would be necessary to avert an impending prison sentence. The offender otherwise qualifies under section 397.334(3), Florida Statutes.

- Must not use alcohol or mind altering substances.
- Must attend all court hearings as scheduled and/or attend court at least once per month.
- Must submit to weekly random urinalysis.

- Must attend Sober Support meetings weekly.
- Must maintain employment, continue education, or obtain a GED.
- Must obtain a driver's license, if necessary.
- Must complete conditions of supervision that includes satisfying court costs.

Pinellas County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers/
Clerk of Court Contact
Nick Bridenback
(727) 453-7063
nbridenback@jud6.org

Transfer Requirements

- This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.
- There is a transfer process between Pasco and Pinellas Counties that must be approved by the state attorney.

Program Eligibility

- Criteria One: apply if funds in Ch. 2013-40, Line Item 3203 are used.
 - Must be a veteran or service member.
 - Must suffer from a military service-related mental illness, traumatic brain injury, substance use disorder, or psychological problem.
 - Eligible charges include misdemeanors or felonies, other than a felony listed in section 948.06(8)(c), Florida Statutes.
 - Must have not entered a plea or been adjudicated prior to entry into the veterans court.
 - Must have not previously participated in veterans court, unless this criterion is specifically waived by the state attorney.
- Criteria Two: apply if funds other than those appropriated in Ch. 2013-40, Line Item 3203 are used.
 - Must be a veteran or service member.
 - Must suffer from a military service-related mental illness, traumatic brain injury, substance use disorder, or psychological problem.
 - Eligible charges include misdemeanors or 3rd degree felonies.
 - Must have not previously participated in veterans court, unless this criterion is specifically waived by the state attorney.

- Must not use alcohol or mind altering substances.
- Must attend all court hearings as scheduled.
- Must submit to weekly random urinalysis.
- Must attend Sober Support meetings weekly.

- Must maintain employment, continue education, or obtain a GED.
- Must obtain a driver's license if necessary and complete conditions of supervision that includes satisfying court costs as ordered.
- Must attend court at least once per month.
- Must complete veterans behavioral intervention program (BIP).

Flagler County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Michael E. Greenier
(386) 313-4557
mgreenier@circuit7.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Dena Hunter (386) 313-4471

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Flagler County.
- Must have a non-violent criminal history.
- Eligible charges include felonies where the primary reason for being in the
 criminal justice system is related to significant substance use, specifically,
 charges of possession, purchase, or attempted purchase of controlled substances,
 uttering false or forged instruments, worthless checks, theft, prescription forgery,
 driving while licensed suspended (DWLS) or revoked, violations of probation or
 community control, and other substance use related offenses recommended by
 the state attorney.
- Must agree to participate in the drug court.

Program Requirements

- Must be placed on drug offender probation.
- Must attend three to five 12-Step or self-help group sessions per week.
- Must complete one hour of community service per week.
- Must attend probation visits one to four times per month.
- Must submit to two or more random drug tests per week.
- Must attend one to four individual therapy sessions per month.
- Must attend two to four group therapy sessions per month.
- Must attend one to four court appearances per month.
- Must complete 25 hours of employment or education per week.

- Must meet program eligibility criteria to include a non-violent felony related to addiction.
- Must be a resident of Flagler County.

| • | Must transfer venue and jurisdiction Must enter a plea. Must be in good standing. Must be approved by the judge. | n. | |
|---|--|----|--|
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | 29 | |

Putnam County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Jacque Yingst
(386) 326-7646
jyingst@circuit7.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Dallas Brown (386) 326-7639

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Putnam County.
- Must have a non-violent criminal history.
- Eligible charges include felonies where the primary reason for being in the criminal justice system is related to significant substance use, specifically, charges of possession, purchase, or attempted purchase of controlled substances, uttering false or forged instruments, worthless checks, theft, prescription forgery, driving while licensed suspended (DWLS) or revoked, violations of probation or community control, and other substance use related offenses recommended by the state attorney.
- Must agree to participate in the drug court.

Program Requirements

- Must participate in drug offender probation or pretrial intervention.
- Must attend two to four self-help group sessions per week.
- Must visit probation one to twenty times per month.
- Must submit to two or more random drug tests per week.
- Must attend one to four individual therapy sessions per month.
- Must attend one to four group therapy sessions per month.
- Must attend one to four court appearances per month.
- Must complete 20 hours of employment, education, or community service per week.
- Must complete 140 community service hours to graduate.

- Eligible charges must include non-violent felonies related to addiction.
- Must be a resident of Putnam County.

| Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.Must be approved by the drug court team.Must enter a plea. | |
|---|--|
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| 31 | |

SEVENETH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

St. Johns County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Ralph Cumberbatch
(904) 827-5620
rcumberbatch@circuit7.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Carol Sullivan (904) 819-3624

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of St. Johns County.
- Must have a non-violent criminal history.
- Eligible charges include felonies where the primary reason for being in the
 criminal justice system is related to significant substance use, specifically,
 charges of possession, purchase, or attempted purchase of controlled substances,
 uttering false or forged instruments, worthless checks, theft, prescription forgery,
 driving while licensed suspended (DWLS) or revoked, violations of probation or
 community control, and other substance use related offenses recommended by
 the state attorney.
- Must agree to participate in the drug court.

Program Requirements

- Must be placed on drug offender probation.
- Must attend three to five self-help group sessions per week.
- Must visit probation one to four times per month.
- Must submit to two or more random drug tests per week.
- Must attend two individual therapy sessions per month in Phase 1.
- Must attend one to two individual therapy sessions per month in Phase 2 through 4.
- Must attend one to three group therapy sessions per week.
- Must attend one to three court appearances per month.
- Must complete 25 hours of employment or education per week.
- Must complete a minimum of 100 community service hours to graduate.

- Must transfer venue and jurisdiction.
- Must submit written request for approval by the drug court team.

Volusia County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Melissa Cuccoro
(386) 947-7077 option 5, Westside
(386) 239-7770 option 3, Eastside
mcuccoro@circuit7.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Michelle Dexter Louise Bright (386) 736-5915

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Volusia County.
- Must have a non-violent criminal history.
- Eligible charges including felonies where the primary reason for being in the
 criminal justice system is related to significant substance use, specifically,
 charges of possession, purchase, or attempted purchase of controlled substances,
 uttering false or forged instruments, worthless checks, theft, prescription forgery,
 driving while licensed suspended (DWLS) or revoked, violations of probation or
 community control, and other substance use related offenses recommended by
 the state attorney.
- Must agree to participate in the drug court.

- Must be placed on drug offender probation.
- Must attend four to five self-help group sessions per week.
- Must visit probation once a month.
- Must attend one to four court supervision visits per month.
- Must submit to two or more random drug tests per week.
- Must attend between one and four individual therapy sessions per month.
- Must attend between one and four group therapy sessions per week.
- Must attend between one and four court appearances per month.
- Must complete 25 hours of employment or education per week.
- Must complete a minimum of 20 community service hours to graduate.

- Eligible charges include non-violent felonies related to addiction.
- Must be a resident of Volusia County.
- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be approved by the drug court team.
- Must enter a plea.

Volusia County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers

Melissa Cuccoro (386) 947-7077 option 5, Westside (386) 239-7770 option 3, Eastside mcuccoro@circuit7.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Michelle Dexter Louise Bright (386) 736-5915

Program Eligibility

- Must be prison bound with Criminal Punishment Code Scoresheet score of 44 to 60 or with a finding by the judge that the defendant would have otherwise been sentenced to prison.
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Volusia County.
- Must have a non-violent criminal history.
- Eligible charges include felonies where the primary reason for being in the
 criminal justice system is related to significant substance use, specifically,
 charges of possession, purchase, or attempted purchase of controlled substances,
 uttering false or forged instruments, worthless checks, theft, prescription forgery,
 driving while licensed suspended (DWLS) or revoked, violations of probation or
 community control, and other substance use related offenses recommended by
 the state attorney.
- Violations of probation are eligible.
- Must agree to participate in the drug court.

- Must be placed on drug offender probation.
- Must attend four to five self-help group sessions per week.
- Must visit probation once a month.
- Must attend one to four court supervision visits per month.
- Must submit two or more random drug tests per week.
- Must attend between one and four individual therapy sessions per month.
- Must attend between one and four group therapy sessions per week.
- Must attend between one and four court appearances per month.

• Must complete a minimum of 20 community service hours to graduate.

- Must transfer venue and jurisdiction.
- Charges must be non-violent felonies related to addiction.
- Must be a resident of Volusia County.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must be prison bound.

Volusia County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Shirley Olson (386) 626-6642 solson@circuit7.org

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be a resident of Volusia County.
- Must have an open misdemeanor or non-violent 3rd degree felony case in Volusia County and be eligible for VA benefits (honorable or general discharge).
- The program does not use age or substance use history as criteria for eligibility.

- Must be placed on probation or obtain a deferred prosecution agreement.
- Must complete community service, drug testing, and treatment.
- Must attend court approximately every two months.

EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Alachua County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Frank A. Owens
(352) 384-3199
fowens@alachuacounty.us

Clerk of Court Contact

Lynette A. Bazinet (352) 264-7053

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree nonviolent felonies and some 2nd degree felonies with state attorney approval.
- Must have a diagnosed substance use or co-occurring disorder.
- Must not have prior violent felonies.
- Must not be on state probation or on violation of probation status for any offense.
- Must reside at a distance that allows check in and program requirements to be fulfilled.

Program Requirements

- Must waive speedy trial and enter contract with the state attorney.
- Must maintain employment or educational requirements to progress to the final phase of the program and for graduation.
- Must have a valid driver license or waiver to graduate.
- Must pay \$20 per week in program fees or complete community service.
- Must initially report daily; then reporting is gradually reduced to twice weekly.
- Must submit to random drug testing.
- Must attend court once per week initially, then attendance is gradually decreased to once per month.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Inter-county post-plea transfers only.
- Requires plea-acceptance with deferred disposition of a successful and an unsuccessful outcome resulting in unconditional case closure.
- Must not be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.

EIGHTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Alachua County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Transfers Blanche Woods (352) 384-3094 woodsb@circuit8.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Shawn Porter (352) 264-7006

Program Eligibility

- Must be a U.S. military veteran discharged under honorable or general conditions or active duty or active National Guard or Reserve.
- Must be eligible for VA service delivery.
- Must be diagnosed with a military service-related mental illness, traumatic brain injury, or substance use disorder.
- Must not have prior violent felonies.
- Eligible charges include non-violent felonies.
- Must not be on state probation or on violation of probation status for any offense.
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must reside at a distance that allows check in and program requirements to be fulfilled.

- Must waive right to speedy trial.
- Must enter program voluntarily or under post plea conditions.
- Must attend court appearances as directed.
- Must submit to all physical, psychological and psychiatric examinations and or assessments and follow treatment as recommended (including residential substance use treatment).
- Must provide truthful information.
- Must pay restitution (if applicable).
- Must not violate any laws.
- Must not consume any alcohol or illegal drugs.
- Must continue contact with the veterans justice outreach specialist and case officer and report as directed.

- Must transfer venue and jurisdiction.
- Transfers are allowed under post plea conditions.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must not be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must demonstrate commitment and understanding of veterans court.

Orange County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Auria Oliver (407) 836-2153 ctdcao1@ocnjcc.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Tess Lynch (407) 836-0468 ctdctl1@ocnjcc.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Carol Morris (407) 836-2000 x 7-1766 Annette Oden (407) 836-2000 x 7-1895

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Orange County.
- Eligible charges must be non-violent and non-forcible felonies.
- Must be experiencing substance dependency and/or use.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to a substance use screening, treatment evaluation, and assessment.
- Must comply with the treatment plan set forth by the drug court program.
- Must submit to random urinalysis drug testing.
- Must attend bi-weekly meetings with the drug court judge.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Transfer of pre-adjudicatory problem solving court cases only.
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Orange County.
- Must enter a plea.
- Eligible charges must be non-violent and non-forcible felony offenses.
- Must be experiencing substance dependency and/or use.

Orange County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Lisa Vargas
(407) 836-0578
ctdclv1@ocnjcc.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Carol Morris (407) 836-2255 Sonia Ortiz (407) 836-2000 x 7-2679

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must be a resident of Orange County.
- Must not have current or prior history of sex crimes, current or prior history of crimes against children, and first degree felonies.
- Must have a military service related mental illness, traumatic brain injury (TBI), substance use disorder, or mental health disorder.
- Must not have any prior felony adjudications.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to random urinalysis drug testing.
- Must attend court two times per month at the beginning; tapers to once per month as the client progresses.
- Must have a substance use/mental health evaluation with the VA and follow through with recommendations.
- Must complete all statutorily mandated requirements based on the type of charge (i.e. battery DV charge would require behavior intervention plan (BIP), DUI charges require certain classes).

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must be a resident of Orange County.
- Must not have current or prior history of sex crimes, current or prior history of crimes against children, and first degree felonies.

| • | Must have a military service related or mental health disorder. Must not have any prior felony adjusted to the service related to the se | | tance use disorder, | |
|---|--|----|---------------------|--|
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | 43 | | |

Osceola County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

T. Michelle Jones (407) 742-2431 ctdcmj1@ocnjcc.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Damarys Davila (407) 742-2432 ctaddd1@ocnjcc.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Shannon Richards (407) 742-3581

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must have been arrested on a drug related offense.
- Must be able to travel to the court and participate in services and drug testing.

Program Requirements

- Must attend court every two weeks.
- Must attend group counseling based on history and drug use.
- Must submit to random urinalysis drug testing (weekly minimum).
- Must participate in pro-social activity.
- Must obtain employment or enroll in school.
- Must meet with case manager and probation monthly.

- Typically a transfer of venue is conducted.
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must have been arrested on a drug related offense.
- Must be able to travel to the court, services, and testing.
- A plea is typically required.

Osceola County

Adult Misdemeanor Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

T. Michelle Jones (407) 742-2431 ctdcmj1@ocnjcc.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Damarys Davila (407) 742-2432 ctaddd1@ocnjcc.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Shannon Richards (407) 742-3581

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must have been arrested on a drug related offense.
- Must be able to travel to the court and participate in services and drug testing.

Program Requirements

- Must attend court every two weeks.
- Must attend group counseling based on history and drug use.
- Must submit to random urinalysis drug testing (weekly minimum).
- Must participate in pro-social activity.
- Must obtain employment or enroll in school.
- Must meet with case manager and probation monthly.

- Typically a transfer of venue is conducted.
- The defendant would be placed on probation supervision.
- A plea is typically required.
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must have been arrested on a drug related offense.
- Must be able to travel to the court, services, and drug testing.

Osceola County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

T. Michelle Jones (407) 742-2431 ctdcmj1@ocnjcc.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Damarys Davila (407) 742-2432 ctaddd1@ocnjcc.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Shannon Richards (407) 742-3581 sric@osceolaclerk.org

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must have been arrested.
- Criminal history must not include life felonies or sex offenses.

Program Requirements

- Must attend court every two weeks.
- Must attend treatment as required.
- Must submit to random urinalysis drug testing (weekly minimum).
- Must meet with case manager and probation monthly.

- Typically a transfer of venue is conducted.
- The defendant will be placed on probation supervision.
- A plea is typically required.
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must have been arrested.
- Criminal history must not include life felonies or sex offenses.

Polk County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea})

Drug Court Coordinator

Desiree Meaton-Francisco (863) 534-4503 dfrancisco@jud10.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Ashley Shanley (863) 534-4984 ashanley@jud10.flcourts.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Paul Levasseur (863) 534-4984 plevasseur@jud10.flcourts.org

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Polk County.
- Eligible charges include first time substance use related felonies.
- Must have a DSM-5 substance use diagnosis.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to frequent urinalysis drug testing.
- Must attend peer support groups.
- Must attend court every 30 days unless otherwise indicated due to violation.
- Must attend individual counseling sessions every 30 days.
- Must attend process and support groups weekly.

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must meet program eligibility.
- Must be approved by coordinator, state attorney and public defender.
- Probation must be transferred by Department of Corrections.

Polk County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Desiree Meaton-Francisco (863) 534-4503 dfrancisco@Jud10.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Ashley Shanley (863) 534-4984 ashanley@jud10.flcourts.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Paul Levasseur (863) 534-4984 plevasseur@jud10.flcourts.org

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Polk County.
- Eligible charges include first time substance use related felonies.
- Must have a DSM-5 substance use diagnosis.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to frequent urinalysis testing.
- Must attend peer support groups.
- Must attend court every 60 days unless otherwise indicated due to violation.
- Must attend individual counseling sessions every 30 days.
- Must attend process and support groups weekly.
- Must be placed on probation supervision .

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must meet program eligibility.
- Must be approved by coordinator, state attorney and public defender.
- Must be placed on probation supervision.
- Probation must be transferred by supervising agency if required by transfer circuit.

Polk County

Adult Misdemeanor Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Desiree Meaton-Francisco (863) 534-4503 dfrancisco@Jud10.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Ashley Shanley (863) 534-4984 ashanley@jud10.flcourts.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Paul Levasseur (863) 534-4984 plevasseur@jud10.flcourts.org

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Polk County.
- Eligible charges include misdemeanor violations of probation.
- Must have a DSM-5 substance use diagnosis.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to frequent urinalysis testing.
- Must attend peer support groups.
- Must attend court every 60 days unless otherwise indicated due to violation.
- Must attend individual counseling sessions every 30 days.
- Must attend process and support groups weekly.
- Must be placed on probation supervision.

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must meet program eligibility.
- Must be approved by coordinator, state attorney and public defender.
- Probation must be transferred by supervising agency.

Polk County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea})

Veterans Court Coordinator

Desiree Meaton-Francisco (863) 534-4503 dfrancisco@jud10.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers/ Clerk of Court Contact

Anita Sullivan (863) 534-7785 asullivan@jud10.flcourts.org

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Polk County.
- Eligible charges include misdemeanors.
- Must have a DSM-5 substance use diagnosis.

Program Requirements

- Must comply with individualized plan.
- Must attend all review hearings.
- Must attend all treatment and meetings.
- Must not use alcohol or illegal drugs.
- Must submit to frequent urinalysis testing.

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must meet program eligibility.
- Must be approved by coordinator, state attorney and public defender.
- If required probation must be transferred by supervising agency.

ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Miami-Dade County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial)

Drug Court Coordinator

Diana Diaz (305) 548-5135 ddiaz@jud11.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Thomas Luis (305) 548-5135 tluis@jud11.flcourts.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Glenn Culbreth (305) 548-5515

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older (unless filed as a direct file in juvenile court).
- Must not have a history of violent crimes.
- Must not have more than two non-forcible prior felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include felony possession or purchase of a controlled substance, obtaining a prescription by fraud, or any other non-violent third degree felony.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to urinalysis testing on a random basis (approximately 2-3 days per week).
- Must comply with the treatment plan set forth by the provider.
- Must pay restitution prior to completing drug court, if applicable.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be in good standing.
- Must have a phone number and address.
- Must be an adult 18 years of age or older (unless filed as a direct file in juvenile court).
- Must not have a history of violent crimes.
- Must not have more than two prior non-forcible felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include felony possession or purchase of a controlled substance, obtaining a prescription by fraud, or any other non-violent third degree felony.

| • | Must have victim consent, if applicable. Dually diagnosed clients must be stabilized & information regarding their treatment must be provided in advance. |
|---|--|
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | 52 |

ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Miami-Dade County

Adult Misdemeanor Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication})

Drug Court Coordinator

Adria Villaverde (305) 349-5552 avillaverde@jud11.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers/ Clerk of Court Contact

Theresa Hicks-Farmer (305) 349-5643 hickst@miamidade.gov

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older (unless filed as a direct file in juvenile court).
- Must not have a history of violent crimes.
- Must not have more than two non-forcible prior felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include felony possession or purchase of a controlled substance, obtaining a prescription by fraud, or any other non-violent third degree felony.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must pay restitution prior to completing drug court, if applicable.

Program Requirements

- Must be assessed to determine level of risk and need.
- Must be closely monitored for a minimum of one year.
- Must attend individual, group, and family therapy.
- Must submit to urinalysis testing on a random basis (approximately 2-3 days per week) and are encouraged to engage in a recovery network.
- Must comply with the treatment plan set forth by the provider.

- Must enter a plea for probation cases.
- Must be approved by the court and state attorney for probation cases.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections when the client is on GPS/house arrest.

Manatee County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Alfred James (941) 749-3670 AJames@jud12.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Donna Spagnola (941) 747-3077 x 6712 donna.spagnola@mymanatee.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Amanda Nelson (941) 749-1800 x 4201

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges must be non-violent.
- Disqualifying charges include drug sales.
- Must not have a violent criminal history.
- Criminal Punishment Code Scoresheet score must be 44 points or lower.
- Violations of probation are eligible.

Program Requirements

- Client requirements depend upon their level or phase in the program and include 12-Step meetings, groups sessions, individual sessions, and random urinalysis.
- Must attend weekly court appearances during Phase 1 and then as determined by the court for later phases.

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must meet program eligibility.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.

Manatee County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Alfred James (941) 749-3670 ajames@jud12.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Donna Spagnola (941) 747-3077 x6712 donna.spagnola@mymanatee.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Amanda Nelson (941) 749-1800 x 4201

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges must be non-violent.
- Disqualifying charges include drug sales.
- Must not have a violent criminal history.
- Criminal Punishment Code Scoresheet score must be 44 points or lower.
- Violations of probation are eligible.

- Must comply with the treatment plan.
- Phase I: must attend weekly court appearances, 3 therapy groups per week, 1 individual therapy session per week, and one 12-Step meeting per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week.
- Phase II: must attend court appearances as determined by the court, 2 therapy groups per week, 1 individual counseling session bi-weekly, two 12-Step meetings per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week, remain current on payments, obtain a sponsor, obtain employment and/or enroll in school, complete community service, and comply with all other treatment assignments.
- Phase III: must attend court appearances as determined by the court, 1 group therapy session per week, 1 individual counseling session per month, and three 12-Step meetings per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week, attend, remain current on payments, pay restitution (if applicable), and comply with all other treatment assignments.

- Phase IV: must attend court appearances as determined by the court, 1 therapy group per month, 1 individual counseling session per month, and four 12-Step meetings per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week, remain current on payments, maintain employment or school enrollment, prepare aftercare plan, and achieve 90 clean days prior to graduation.
- Community service hours may be completed in lieu of payment for court and program fees, but not for restitution.
- Must maintain employment, unless disabled.

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must meet program eligibility.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.

Sarasota County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Alfred James (941) 749-3670 ajames@jud12.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Leslie Parcels (941) 861-4460 lparcels@scgov.net

Clerk of Court Contact

Pamela Pietsch (941) 861-7440

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges must be non-violent.
- Disqualifying charges include drug sales.
- Must not have violent criminal history.
- Criminal Punishment Code Scoresheet score must be 44 points or lower.
- Violations of probation are eligible.

- Must comply with the treatment plan.
- Phase I: must attend weekly court appearances, 3 therapy groups per week, 1 individual therapy session per week, and one 12-Step meeting per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week.
- Phase II: must attend court appearances as determined by the court, 2 therapy groups per week, 1 individual counseling session bi-weekly, two 12-Step meetings per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week, remain current on payments, obtain a sponsor, obtain employment and/or enroll in school, complete community service, and comply with all other treatment assignments.
- Phase III: must attend court appearances as determined by the court, 1 group therapy session per week, 1 individual counseling session per month, and three 12-Step meetings per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week, attend, remain current on payments, pay restitution (if applicable), and comply with all other treatment assignments.

- Phase IV: must attend court appearances as determined by the court, 1 therapy group per month, 1 individual counseling session per month, and four 12-Step meetings per week. Must submit to random urinalysis once a week, remain current on payments, maintain employment or school enrollment, prepare aftercare plan, and achieve 90 clean days prior to graduation.
- Community service hours may be completed in lieu of payment for court and program fees, but not for restitution.
- Must maintain employment, unless disabled.

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must meet program eligibility.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.

THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Hillsborough County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

George Johnson (813) 272-5518 george.johnson@fljud13.org

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Hillsborough County.
- Must be charged with a 3rd degree drug felony.
- Must not have an accompanying forcible felony charge or have been adjudicated guilty of a forcible felony.
- Must not be a sex offender.
- Must not have any offense pending involving the dealing or selling of controlled substances.
- Must qualify for either community sanctions under the Criminal Punishment Code or sentencing under the Florida Youthful Offender ACT.

- Must enter a guilty plea.
- Must attend weekly court appearances.
- Must comply with prescribed medication(s).
- Must comply with the drug/alcohol treatment plan.
- Must submit to random drug/alcohol screenings weekly.
- Must pay required costs and fees.
- Must pay restitution, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections including electronic monitoring.
- Must maintain court-approved full-time employment, training, or education.
- Must complete community service.
- Must attend weekly NA/AA support meetings.

THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Hillsborough County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea})

Drug Court Coordinator

George Johnson (813) 272-5518 george.johnson@fljud13.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Crystal Cash (813) 272-5523 sellercm@fljud13.org

Clerk Contact

Sheri Scott (813) 276-8100 x 3397

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Hillsborough County.
- Must not have prior felony adjudications or delinquent acts that would be a felony if committed by an adult.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree non-violent felonies including, but not limited to, possession of illegal drugs.
- Must be physically and mentally stable and able to actively participate in treatment.

- Must waive the right to a speedy trial.
- Must attend weekly court appearances.
- Must comply with prescribed medication(s).
- Must submit to random drug/alcohol screenings weekly.
- Must pay required costs and fees.
- Must pay restitution, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections including electronic monitoring.
- Must maintain court-approved full-time employment, training, or education.
- Must complete community service.
- Must attend weekly 12-Step/self-help support groups.
- Must sign a treatment contract.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must comply with thorough pre-screening.
- Must be a resident of Hillsborough County.

THIRTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Hillsborough County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

George Johnson (813) 272-5518 george.johnson@fljud13.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Kristen Slowiczek (813) 272-5204 slowickr@fljud13.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Harmony Lacey (813) 276-2029 x 3958

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member
- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Hillsborough County.
- Must be diagnosed with a military service-related mental illness, traumatic brain injury, substance use disorder, or mental health disorder.
- Must be eligible for VA services.
- Must agree to participate in veterans court.

- Must waive the right to a speedy trial.
- Must attend bi-weekly court appearances.
- Must submit to screening and a risk and needs comprehensive assessment.
- Must comply with the Department of Corrections and Veterans Justice Outreach requirements.
- Must meet with a mentor.
- Must comply with prescribed medication(s).
- Must attend anger management, domestic violence counseling, and trauma counseling, if applicable.
- Must comply with drug/alcohol treatment.
- Must submit to random drug/alcohol screenings.
- Must pay required costs and fees.
- Must pay restitution, if applicable.

- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections including electronic monitoring.
- Must maintain court-approved full-time employment, training, or education.
- Must complete community service.
- Must attend weekly 12-Step/self-help support groups.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must comply with thorough pre-screening.
- Must be a resident of Hillsborough County.

FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Bay County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Linda Burd
(850) 873-7095
burdl@jud14.flcourts.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Joanne Gilpin (850) 747-5265

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Bay County.
- Must have a history of substance use and admit to having a drug problem, or have a positive urinalysis while on probation.
- Eligible charges include non-violent charges; drug charges (felony), grand theft, forgery, fraud, and burglary.
- Ineligible charges include drug sales.

Program Requirements

- Violations of probation clients must be placed on drug offender probation or drug offender community control.
- Must attend 12-Step programs, inpatient treatment if needed, and outpatient treatment.
- Must complete public service work hours.
- Must submit to urinalysis drug testing.
- Must attend all court appearances phase 1 is once a week, phase 2 is once every 2 weeks, phase 3 is once every 3 weeks.
- Must obtain employment.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Diversion cases are accepted.
- Referrals must be screened by drug court manager prior to transfer.

FOURTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Jackson County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Cary Godwin (850) 718-0480 godwinc@jud14.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Amber Baggett (850) 482-9844 baggetta@jud14.flcourts.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Jeannie Hooppell (850) 482-9552

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Jackson, Calhoun, Washington, or Holmes Counties.
- Must have a history of substance use and admit to having a drug problem, or have a positive urinalysis while on probation.
- Eligible charges include felony drug charges, grand theft, forgery, and fraud.
- Violent criminal history is considered case by case.

Program Requirements

- Clients who violate probation must be placed on drug offender probation or drug offender community control.
- Must attend 12-Step programs, inpatient treatment if needed, and outpatient treatment.
- Must complete public service work hours.
- Must submit to urinalysis drug testing.
- Must attend all court appearances phase 1 is once a week, phase 2 is once every 2 weeks, phase 3 is once every 3 weeks, aftercare is once a month.
- Must obtain employment.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Referrals must be screened by court program specialists.

FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Palm Beach County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication})

Drug Court Coordinator

Maria Stevens (561) 688-4530 dtyng@pbcgov.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Sheree Carter (561) 688-4530 smcarter@pbcgov.org
Jim McCourt (561)-688-4530 jrmccourt@pbcgov.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Cicely Ford (561) 355-3213

Program Eligibility

- Must be a resident of Palm Beach County and remain in Palm Beach County for the duration of the program (one year minimum).
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree nonviolent felonies and some 2nd degree felonies with state attorney approval and client identified as having a substance use problem.
- Must not have prior felony or battery adjudications except adjudication of the 3rd degree for possession of controlled substance under s. 893.13(6)(a) Florida Statutes.
- Must not have previously participated in any felony pretrial intervention program, including drug court, in another jurisdiction.
- The facts of the case, or any prior case, must not indicate involvement in the dealing or selling of controlled substances.
- No separate pending charges including probation or pretrial intervention.
- Must agree to participate.

- Must attend individual and group counseling sessions.
- Must submit to random, observed drug testing a minimum of twice per week.
- Must agree to all terms of the Drug Court Contract.
- Must attend 12-Step meetings.

- Must have monthly supervisory contact with the Department of Corrections.
- Must agree to frequent court appearances.
- Must agree to 60-day inpatient treatment if clinically indicated.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must enter a guilty plea.
- Must not have any open cases or cases in which the client is on probation in the sending jurisdiction.

FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Palm Beach County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Transfers Michelle Spangenberg (561) 355-6396 mspangen@pbcgov.com

Clerk of Court Contact

Tivi Molloy (561) 355-3213

Program Eligibility

- Must have served active duty in the US military and received an honorable discharge.
- Active duty clients are accepted on a case by case basis.

Program Requirements

• Must attend weekly court appearances.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Transfers are handled according to Florida Statute 910.035(5B).

SIXTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Monroe County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea})

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Allison Katz
(305) 295-3661
allison.katz@keyscourts.net

Clerk of Court Contact

Violet Knowles (305) 292-3252

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Monroe County.
- Must meet the drug court statute criteria in addition to receiving permission for placement by the state attorney.
- Must be screened for eligibility and out-patient treatment.

Program Requirements

- Must submit to drug testing three times a week.
- Must attend individual counseling once a week, group counseling once a week, and three AA/NA meetings per week.

- Must transfer jurisdiction.
- Must enter a plea.

Broward County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Marta Prieto
(954) 831-6372
mprieto@17th.flcourts.org

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges include non-violent felonies.
- Must have a substance use problem.
- Must be amenable to treatment.
- Restitution must be ordered prior to starting drug court, if applicable.

- Must be placed on probation or community control with the special condition of post-adjudicatory drug court.
- Must complete all treatment requirements including group and individual sessions, any other sessions scheduled by treatment, and fellowship meetings.
- Must attend monthly court hearings.
- Must submit to random drug testing (frequency determined by treatment phase).

Broward County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea})

Drug Court Coordinator

Marta Prieto (954) 831-6372 mprieto@17th.flcourts.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Russell Edwards (954) 831-7664 russelledwards@17th.flcourts.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Diane Diaz (954) 831-6504

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must not have prior adjudications.
- Eligible charges include offenses under section 948.08 (6), Florida Statutes or a non-violent felony with a finding of a substance use problem.
- Restitution must be ordered prior to starting drug court, if applicable.
- If not eligible, the client may participate in drug court as a special condition to probation.

Program Requirements

- Must sign a deferred prosecution agreement which includes a waiver of speedy trial and a limited waiver of confidentiality.
- Must complete all treatment requirements including group and individual sessions, fellowship meetings, and any other sessions scheduled by treatment.
- Must attend monthly court hearings.
- Must submit to random drug testing (frequency determined by treatment phase).

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must enter a conditional plea for deferred sentencing.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must be approved by the drug court manager.

Broward County

Adult Misdemeanor Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Michele Mumaw (954) 831-5317 <u>Michele_mumaw@sheriff.org</u>

Designee for Handling Transfers/ Clerk of Court Contact Marsha Thomas (954) 831-5712 mthomas@browardclerk.org

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Eligible charges include an offense under section 948.16, Florida Statutes, nonviolent, non-traffic related misdemeanor with substance use problem or misdemeanor possession of controlled substance or drug paraphernalia, prostitution, possession of alcohol under 21, and possession of controlled substance without a valid prescription.
- Must be charged with a substance use related charge.
- Must not have prior felony adjudications.

Program Requirements

- Must sign an agreement setting forth all terms and conditions of participation.
- Must attend pretrial substance use education and treatment intervention program or probation substance use education and treatment intervention program for a minimum of 6 months and comply with all terms or court orders.
- Must attend educational classes and life skills class.
- Must submit to frequent urinalysis.
- Must be screened for treatment counseling.
- Must attend frequent court appearances (monthly or bi-monthly dependent on progress).
- Must complete community service and attend support meetings.

- Must be eligible and volunteer.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must enter a plea of not guilty and waive speedy trial.

Broward County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Linda Brooks (954) 831-6994 <u>lbrooks@17th.flcourts.org</u>

Designee for Handling Transfers/ Clerk of Court Contact Charles Hall (954) 831-5723

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member.
- There is no age restriction on defendants accepted into veterans court.

Program Requirements

- Must waive speedy trial and comply with all court ordered treatment including evaluations for mental illness and substance use, and medication management.
- Must comply with all aspects of the treatment plan as established by the VA.
- Must submit to drug testing.
- Must attend court for all noticed hearings.

Transfer Requirements

• All parties must agree.

EIGHTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Brevard County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Lisa Mooty
(321) 637-5541
lisa.mooty@brevardcounty.us

Clerk of Court Contact

Barbara Camarillo (321) 637-5413 x 49145 barbara.camarillo@brevardclerk.us

Program Eligibility

- Must meet criteria set forth in section 948.08, Florida Statutes.
- Eligible charges include non-violent drug felony offenses linked to substance use.
- Must be approved by the state attorney and judge and have consent from the victim, if applicable.

Program Requirements

Pretrial only:

- Must complete a 30 day qualification phase to determine appropriate track.
- Track 1: Basic Phase (little or no history of drug use)-must attend drug education, parenting education, HIV education, and anger management. Track 2: Outpatient Phase I-must attend drug education, parenting education, HIV education, anger management, and 12-Step program. Phase II-must attend moral reconation therapy (MRT). Phase III must attend relapse prevention. Track 3: must attend 6 months of residential treatment followed by 6 months of outpatient treatment and a 12-Step program. Must submit to drug testing no less than once per week. Must complete 50 hours of community service. Must attend court for contract signing, 30 day review, and then only if in non-compliance status.

Post-Adjudication (Track 2 or 3):

- Track 2 Outpatient:
- Phase I-must attend drug education, parenting education, HIV education, and anger management. Must attend court bi-weekly. Phase II-must attend moral reconation therapy (MRT). Must attend court monthly. Phase III-must attend relapse prevention. Must attend a 12-Step program. Must attend court as needed.

• Track 3: must attend 6 months residential treatment followed by 6 months of outpatient treatment. Must attend a 12-Step program. Must submit to drug testing no less than twice a week.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.
- Must enter a plea.

EIGHTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Brevard County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Pre Plea})

Veterans Court Coordinator

Lisa Mooty (321) 637-5541 lisa.mooty@brevardcounty.us

Designee for Handling Transfers

Joe Downing (321) 617-7510 x 7685 jdowning@sa18.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Pam Lanier (321) 637-5413 x 59180

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be eligible for VA services.
- Eligible charges include misdemeanors, 3rd degree felonies or criminal traffic offenses.
- Ineligible offenses include DUI.

Program Requirements

- Must not take any illegal drugs or alcohol.
- Must submit to random drug testing.
- Must complete substance use and mental health evaluations.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must be approved the state attorney.
- Must enter a plea.

EIGHTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Seminole County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator/
Designee for Handling Transfers
Anthony A. Warren
(407) 665-4966
anthony.warren@flcourts18.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Maryanne Morse (407) 665-4450

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Seminole County.
- Eligible charges include non-violent felonies. Individuals who are charged with any other 2nd or 3rd degree felony may request the state attorney to review their case for consideration for the program.
- Must be diagnosed with a substance use disorder as their primary condition.
- Ineligible offenses include prior or current violent or criminal felony offenses relating to drug trafficking and importation and a prior record of sale or delivery of a controlled substance or possession with intent to sell or deliver a controlled substance.
- Must have a serious substance use problem requiring treatment.
- Must be mentally capable of benefitting from the adult drug court and be motivated to complete the program.
- Must be approved by the state attorney.

- Must enter a plea and have sentences deferred until the completion of the program.
- Must be placed on supervision by the Department of Corrections for a period of 12 to 18 months.
- Must complete substance use treatment that will be delivered in the following four drug court program phases. The length of program phase depends on individual progress. The below guidelines are the minimum requirements:
 - o Phase 1: Stabilization Phase lasts a minimum of 1 month.
 - o Phase 2: Intensive Treatment usually lasts a minimum of 3 months.
 - o Phase 3: Relapse Prevention usually lasts a minimum of 6 months.
 - o Phase 4: Community Transition period lasts a minimum of 2 months.

Transfer Requirements Must transfer jurisdiction and venue. Must enter a plea. Must waive the right to a speedy trial. 78

EIGHTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Seminole County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers Anthony A. Warren (407) 665-4966 anthony.warren@flcourts18.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Maryanne Morse (407) 665-4450

Program Eligibility

- Must have served in the United States Armed Forces and be eligible to receive services through the VA.
- Eligible charges include most non-violent and non-traffic related 3rd degree felonies and misdemeanor cases. Domestic violence cases, battery upon a law enforcement officer, resisting a law enforcement officer with violence, non-traffic charges, and resisting a law enforcement officer without violence may be eligible for the program. Minor misdemeanor (non-DUI) traffic offenses arising from the same incident will not disqualify a veteran from participation in the program on the primary non-traffic charge(s).
- Ineligible offenses include traffic offenses, including DUI; current or prior distribution, sale or delivery of controlled substances; violent felonies; or more than one violent misdemeanor are not eligible.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must pay restitution, if applicable.
- If accepted, all previously imposed conditions of bond will remain in effect as part of the program.

- Must enter a plea and have sentences deferred until the completion of the program.
- Must be placed on supervision by the Seminole County Probation Office for monitoring while in the program.
- Must pay all treatment court fees and restitution, if any.

- Cases can be transferred via a full transfer of the criminal cases or a transfer of supervision.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must waive right to a speedy trial.
- Must be supervised by probation.

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Indian River County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Tammi Buchanan (772) 807-4388 buchanant@circuit19.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Wendy English (772) 226-3141

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Indian River County.
- Must have current substance use or prior substance use history.
- Must not have prior felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree non-violent drug related offenses.
- There may also be conditions of probation or community control.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program per phase guidelines.
- Must submit to random testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with probation.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school or complete community service hours.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must enter a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- Must pay cost of treatment.
- Must pay required program costs and fees.
- Must sign and comply with the Drug Court Intervention and Treatment Agreement and Order.

- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Must enter a plea of guilt or nolo contendere.
- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be resident of receiving county.
- Probation must be transferred by the Department of Corrections.

NINTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Indian River County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Tammi Buchanan (772) 807-4388 buchanan T@circuit 19.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Wendy English (772) 226-3141

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must be a resident of Indian River County.
- Must suffer from a military service-related mental illness, traumatic brain injury, substance use disorder or mental health disorder.
- Must be eligible for services through the VA.
- Eligible charges include all felonies other than a felony listed in section 948.06(8)(c) Florida Statutes.
- Must agree to participate in veterans court.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program per phase guidelines.
- Must submit to random testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with probation.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school, or complete community service hours.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable
- Must comply with treatment plan as established by VA
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections (DOC) or Comprehensive Offender Rehabilitation and Education (C.O.R.E.) probation.
- Must comply with DOC/C.O.R.E. and VA requirements.
- Must meet with a mentor.
- Must comply with all prescribed medications.

- Must pay required costs and fees.
- Must sign and comply with Order Placing Defendant in Veterans Court.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Probation must be transferred by the Department of Corrections or the County.
- Must reside in receiving county.

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Martin County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Diane O'Neal (772) 807-4388 onealD@circuit19.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Wanda Timmons (772) 223-4899

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Martin County.
- Must have current substance use or prior substance use history.
- Must not have prior felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree non-violent drug related offenses.
- There may also be conditions of probation or community control.
- Violation of probation accepted on eligible crimes.
- Must be amenable to participating and agree to enter and successfully complete drug court as a condition of probation or community control.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program per phase guidelines.
- Must submit to random testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with probation.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school or complete community service hours.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must enter a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- Must pay cost of treatment.
- Must pay required program costs and fees.

• Must sign and comply with the Drug Court Intervention and Treatment Agreement and Order.

- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Okeechobee County

Adult Misdemeanor Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Wendy Parent (772) 807-4388 parentW@circuit19.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Danielle Craig (863) 763-2131

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Okeechobee County.
- Must have current substance use or prior substance use history.
- Must not have prior felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree non-violent drug related offenses.
- There may also be conditions of probation or community control.
- Violation of probation accepted on eligible crime.
- Must be amenable to participating and agree to enter and successfully complete drug court as a condition of probation or community control.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program per phase guidelines.
- Must submit to random testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with probation.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school or complete community service hours.
- Must attend monthly meetings with Comprehensive Offender Rehabilitation and Education (C.O.R.E.) probation.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the C.O.R.E.
- Must enter a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.

- Must pay cost of treatment.
- Must pay required program costs and fees.
- Must sign and comply with the Drug Court Intervention and Treatment Agreement and Order.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Must enter a plea of guilt or nolo contendere.
- Must be resident of receiving county.
- Probation must be transferred by the county.

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

Okeechobee County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication and Post-Adjudication})

Drug Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Wendy Parent (772) 807-4388 parentW@circuit19.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Danielle Craig (863) 763-2131

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Okeechobee County.
- Must have current substance use or prior substance use history.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree non-violent drug related offenses.
- Must not have a prior felony adjudication.
- There may be a condition of probation or community control
- Violation of probation accepted on eligible crimes.
- Must be amenable to participating and agree to enter and successfully complete drug court as a condition of probation or community control.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program per phase guidelines.
- Must submit to random testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with Comprehensive Offender Rehabilitation and Education (C.O.R.E.) probation.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school or complete community service hours.
- Must attend monthly meetings with probation.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must enter a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- Must pay cost of treatment.

- Must pay required program costs and fees.
- Must sign and comply with the Drug Court Intervention and Treatment Agreement and Order.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Must enter a plea of guilt or nolo contendere.
- Must be resident of receiving county.
- Probation must be transferred by the Department of Corrections.

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

St. Lucie County

Adult Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Gina Masters (772) 807-4388 mastersg@circuit19.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Debra Brunson (772) 462-6992

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of St. Lucie County.
- Must have current substance use or prior substance use history.
- Must have no prior felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree non-violent drug related offenses.
- There may also be conditions of probation or community control.
- Violation of probation accepted on eligible crimes.
- Must be amenable to participating and agree to enter and successfully complete drug court as a condition of probation or community control.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program per phase guidelines.
- Must submit to random testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with probation.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school or complete community service hours.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections.
- Must enter a plea of guilt or nolo contendere.
- Must pay cost of treatment.
- Must pay required program costs and fees.

• Must sign and comply with the Drug Court Intervention and Treatment Agreement and Order.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Must enter a plea of guilt or nolo contendere.
- Must be resident of receiving county.
- Probation must be transferred by the Department of Corrections.

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

St. Lucie County

Adult Misdemeanor Drug Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Wendy Parent (772) 807-4388 parentw@circuit19.org

Clerk of Court Contacts

Leslie Norman (772) 462-6941 Tina Rel (772) 462-6896

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of St. Lucie County.
- Must have current substance use or prior substance use history.
- Must not have prior felony adjudications.
- Eligible charges include 3rd degree non-violent drug related offenses.
- There may also be conditions of probation or community control.
- Violation of probation accepted on eligible crime.
- Must be amenable to participating and agree to enter and successfully complete drug court as a condition of probation or community control.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program as directed.
- Must submit to random testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with Comprehensive Offender Rehabilitation and Education (C.O.R.E.) probation.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school or complete community service hours.
- Must attend monthly meetings with Comprehensive Offender Rehabilitation and Education (C.O.R.E.) probation.

- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must be supervised by the C.O.R.E.
- Must enter a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- Must pay cost of treatment.
- Must pay required program costs and fees.
- Must sign and comply with the Drug Court Intervention and Treatment Agreement and Order.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Must enter a plea of guilt or nolo contendere.
- Must be resident of receiving county.
- Probation must be transferred by the county.

NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

St. Lucie County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Lynda Moore (772) 807-4388 moorel@circuit19.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Tammi Buchanan (772) 807-4388 buchanant@circuit19.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Alysia Watkins (772) 472-4169

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member.
- Must be a resident of St. Lucie County.
- Must suffer from a military service-related mental illness or traumatic brain injury.
- Must have a substance use disorder or psychological problem.
- Must be eligible for services through the VA.
- Eligible charges include felonies other than felonies listed in section 948.06(8)(c), Florida Statutes.
- Must agree to participate in veterans court.

- Must attend substance use counseling.
- Must attend a 12-Step program per phase guidelines.
- Must submit to random or hotline testing at a minimum of 1 time per week.
- Must attend court status hearings weekly or bi-monthly.
- Must attend monthly meetings with probation. May be supervised by the Department of Corrections or Condition of Community Control.
- Must be employed, enrolled in school, or complete community service hours.
- Must have victim consent, if applicable.
- Must comply with treatment plan as established by VA.
- Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections (DOC) or Comprehensive Offender Rehabilitation and Education (C.O.R.E.) probation.
- Must comply with DOC/C.O.R.E. and VA requirements.

- Must meet with a mentor.
- Must comply with all prescribed medications.
- Must pay required program costs and fees.
- Must sign and comply with Order Placing Defendant in Veterans Court.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Must obtain approval from the state attorney.
- Must be eligible for the program.
- Probation must be transferred by the Department of Corrections or the County.
- Must reside in receiving county.

Charlotte County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Paul Martineau (941) 637-2297 pmartineau@ca.cjis20.org

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Eligible charges include non-violent drug related felonies.
- Must enter a plea of guilty or no contest.
- Must not have a history of violent crimes.

- Must submit to weekly, random drug testing.
- Must attend court appearances weekly in Phases 1-3. Must attend court appearances once every four weeks in Phase 4, unless otherwise ordered.
- Must obtain stable housing.
- Must be employed or perform weekly community service.

Charlotte County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Paul Martineau (941) 637-2297 pmartineau@ca.cjis20.org

Transfer Requirements

• This jurisdiction does not participate in the statewide transfer of problem-solving court cases.

Program Eligibility

- Must be an eligible veteran.
- Must have non-violent mental health and or drug related issue(s).
- Must not have a history of violent crimes. Exceptions are considered on a case by case basis.

- Must submit to weekly, random drug testing.
- Must attend court appearances weekly in Phases 1-3. Must attend court appearances once every four weeks in Phase 4, unless otherwise ordered.
- Must obtain stable housing.
- Must be employed, or perform weekly community service.
- Must comply with the VA treatment plan, if eligible for services.

Collier County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Jay Freshwater (239) 417-4595 freshwater.william.@mail.dc.state.fl.us

Designee for Handling Transfers

Jennifer Toussaint (239) 252-8470 jtoussaint@sao.cjis20.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Christine Sanner (239) 252-7662

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Collier County.
- Must have a substance dependence diagnosis and have a felony case that relates to addiction.

Program Requirements

- Must attend regular court appearances before a designated drug court judge.
- Must comply with treatment requirements, which include drug testing, individual/group counseling, family counseling, and regular attendance at recovery support groups.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be clinically screened.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must be approved by the drug court team.
- Must review the Collier County Drug Court Handbook and complete a Drug Court Contract.
- Must obtain an Agreed Order of Transfer and Order Ratifying the Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition.
- Certain felony charges preclude participation.

Collier County

Veterans Court (Pretrial {Post Plea/Pre-Adjudication} and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator

Charles Crews (239) 252-8702 ccrews@ca.cjis20.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Jennifer Toussaint (239) 252-8470 jtoussaint@sao.cjis20.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Christine Sanner (239) 252-7662

Program Eligibility

- Must be a veteran or service member who has served in any of the armed forces
 for any period of time, regardless of type of service, type of discharge, or
 eligibility for VA benefits.
- Must be a resident of Collier County.
- Must have a specific mental health and/or substance use treatment need, which may include post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) and/or traumatic brain injury (TBI).
- Must be legally competent to proceed.
- Must be charged with a felony, misdemeanor, or violation of probation.

Program Requirements

- Must be placed on probation.
- Must attend court appearances as required (initially weekly, then gradually reduced to every two weeks, then every three weeks, then monthly).
- Must follow all recommendations of the VA regarding any treatment involving mental health, substance use, and PTSD.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must be clinically screened.
- Must enter a plea.
- Must be approved by the veterans court team.

- Must review the Collier County Veterans Court Handbook and complete a Veterans Court Contract.
- Must obtain an Agreed Order of Transfer and Order Ratifying the Agreement to Transfer Jurisdiction and Venue for Disposition.
- Certain felony charges preclude participation.

Lee County

Adult Drug Court (Post-Adjudication)

Drug Court Coordinator

Ervin Gill (239) 533-8440 egill@ca.cjis20.org

Designee for Handling Transfers

Lewanda Oliver-Smith (239) 533-1064 loliversmith@sao.cjis20.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Nina Woolfork (239) 533-2608

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Lee County.
- Eligible charges include non-violent felonies.
- Must have a non-violent criminal history.
- Must have a history of substance use.

Program Requirements

- Must be placed on state probation or drug offender probation.
- Must attend a 12-Step program or equivalent.
- Must complete community service.
- Must obtain or maintain employment.
- Must submit to drug testing.
- Must maintain education, if applicable.
- Must attend weekly court appearances initially, then gradually decrease in attendance frequency.
- Must comply with treatment as directed by clinician.
- Must meet probation appointments.
- Must comply with curfew requirements.

- Must transfer jurisdiction and venue.
- Must also have a local felony case.

| Must be supervised by the Department of Corrections. Must be approved by the state attorney and judge. Must enter a plea. |
|---|
| |
| |
| |
| |
| 103 |

Lee County

Veterans Court (Pretrial and Post-Adjudication)

Veterans Court Coordinator/ Designee for Handling Transfers Belinda Smith (239) 533-9122 bsmith@ca.cjis20.org

Clerk of Court Contact

Bryan Platten (239) 533-8259

Program Eligibility

- Must be 18 years of age or older.
- Must be a resident of Lee County.
- Must be eligible for VA health care benefits.

Program Requirements

- Must participate in support groups.
- Must attend a 12-Step program as identified in intervention plan.
- Must attend court appearance every two weeks.

- Must reside in receiving county.
- Must be supervised by probation or diversion and meet program requirements.

| Office of the State Courts Administrator Office of Court Improvement: | |
|---|--|
| Phone: 850/414-1507 500 South Duval Street Tallahassee, Florida 32399 <u>flcourts.org</u> | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| 105 | |